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The deed of 1795 indicates that the original house was built
about_1740. Internal architectural evident indicates that it was a
storey-and—a—half gambrel~-roof brick structure of five bays built
on a central hall plan with two large rooms on the ground floor, one
on either side. There appear to have been two side doors also, one -
into each room. Balancing windows on the ground floor on the other
side of the fireplaces show, but their date is uncertain. Two small
~ windows on the second storey completed each side. TQEMfront was

three-course Flemish bond with black headers; the side was irregularly

laid English bond, and the back was three-courses thick of common
bond. ,

_ The record of the New Castle County Orphan's Court indicates a .
stone kitchen adjoining in poor: repalr in 1775. Sincé the stone :
kitchen is built against the second storey walls, the change to the
present appearance must have taken place in two stages early in the
period-between 1740 and 1775. The roof was raised to a full 3—bay
second storey with attic. The new second storey front was again
Flemish bond, but no black headers. A brick ledge indicates that
the eaves were converted to pent eaves. The back hall door was
modified to accomodate a fine staircase, quite similar to that in
the Gunning Bedford house in New Castle. The sagging joists in the
hall were levelled by adding strips across them and the floor.boards
in the hall now run with - the joists. The side doors were converted -
to windows. All side windows except the small ones in the attic were
later-bricked in, presumably to avoid payment of window tax. The
fireplace piers on each end are free standing within the outer walls
and may have been modified to accomodate the weight octasioned by
the greater height. Cupboards appear in the fireplace: masonry on
either:end,on:ithe ground floor. There were fireplaces at each end
o € house on each floor. Two more appear in the kitchen wing
making six in all. The remains of an oven can be seen in the kitchen
wall beside the fireplace and there are three flues in the chimney
in the kitchen wing. - The upstairs room to the East of the main
building was divided leaving the smaller room without a fireplace.
All these changes presumably were made at different tlmes during the -
1740=1775 period. : ,

An interesting feature of the house is the pay-master's drawer -
under the front window nearest the grist mill (now a ruined foun- -
dation) through which Joseph Rotheram transacted business with the
customers of his mills. The miller lived in a log cabin, now
vanished. What is probably the foundation of the saw mill has been :

found near the remains of the dam on the White Clay Creek.

Sometime in the latter half of the nineteenth century the
house was "modernized". Windows were changed to two-over~-two.
Fireplaces were bricked up and stoves added. Some downstairs
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Rotheram Mill House was built in 1740 by Joseph Rotheram on
a site already occupied by a sawmill and a gri&t milI.  The house
was occupied by James Price and his descendents from 1802 until 1886.

Joseph Rotheram's daughter, Abigail, married Joseph England,
II, proprietor of the next mill upstream on White Clay Creek, now
known as Red Mill. Their daughter, Sarah, became the wife of
Captain Robert Kirkwood of Revolutionary War fame.

The house was the home of James Price and his wife, Margaret
Tatnall (widow of Edward Starr) who were married in 1802. Their
four children were born there. James Price was born at Stoneton
Farm, Kent County, Maryland. - He was a prosperous planter and miller
and was the first president of the Union Bank of Delaware in 1839,
In 1838 he was the second president of the Philadelphidj-wilwminigton
and Baltimore Railway, now the Penn-Central Railroad. He was also
great~great grandson of Colonel John Hyland of "Harmony Hall,"
Cecil County, Maryland. From this he renamed the "Rotheram Mill"
on White Clay Creek to "Harmony Mills." The railxoad station,:r-
recently burned, became Harmony Station.

- ey e AW T

Margaret Tatnall Price's father was Joseph Tatnall. He is
called the most distinguished man in Wilmington, by Elizabeth
Montgomery in her book, Reminiscences. He alone ground flour forx
Washington's army at the time of Valley Forge. Eminently successful
as a miller and in the shipping business, 'he entertained George
Washington, the Marquis de Lafayette and General Anthony Wayne. In
1795 he was the first president of the Bank of Delaware. In 1798
he presented the town .clo¢ck to Wilmington s old Town Hall and the
large bell to the town. . S S

(Compiled from information supplied by Mr. Joseph C. McCune of
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania, a Rotheram descendent, and Mrs. Harry
Clark ‘Boden of Newark, Delaware, a Price descendent.)
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Scharf and Westcott's History of Delaware, page 939.

Montgomery, Elizabeth, Reminiscences.

Massey, G. V., Ancestry of Elizabeth DuPont Bayard.

Records of Wilmington Friends' Meeting.
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7. DESCRIPTION (cont'd.)

mantles were changed to slate. Door hardware was changed to porcelain
knobs and cast iron hinges. The chair rail was removed. A gable was
added to the center front of the roof and low slanting pillared porches
added front and back. The roof burned and was replaced about 1930.

Except for the addition of heat, light and plumbing, the house
remained essentially unchanged until purchased as a Victorian farm
house in 1961. Its true nature was then discovered and restoration
to the pre-1775 period has been in progress for the last ten years with
careful attention to each detail. Restoration to the 1740 original
is architecturally impractical. .
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9. MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES (cont'd.)

Records of New Castle County Orphan's Court, Wilmington, July 19,
1774, re: Joseph Rotheram.

Beers, D. G., Atlas of the State of Delaware, (Pomeroy & Beers,
Philadelphia, 1868), page 25.

Liber P-Z, folios 140-144, New Castle County Deeds, Hall of
Records, Dover, Delaware.
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